2005

# Michael A. Bacon v. Jerry Jorgensen, et al. : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

## JURISDICTION AND NATURE OF THE PROCEEDING

THIS APPEAL IS FROM A HABEAS CORPUS PETITION PURSUANT TO UTAH RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE RULE 65B IN THE THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT IN AND FOR SALT LAKE COUNTY STATE OF UTAH JUDGE TIMOTHY R. HANSON PRESIDING. THIS COURT HAS JURISDICTION OF THIS APPEAL PURSUANT TO UTAH CODE ANNOTATED 78-22-3 (F)

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

THIS CASE DEALS WITH THE ACTIONS OF THE UTAH BOARD OF PAROLENS PROCEDURAL SUBSTANTIVE DUE PROCESS VIOLATIONS. THE BOARD OF PAROLENS NOT IN COMPLIANCE OF THEIR OWN RULES AND THE ISSUE OF LANGUAGE THAT IS MANDATORY USED IN THEIR OWN RULES. THAT BINDS THE BOARD TO COMPLY.

THE LOWER COURT AND THIS PRESENT COURT HAS PROPER JURISDICTION TO GRANT RELIEF EVEN IF THAT RELIEF IS RELEASE FROM ONE ASPECT OF PHYSICAL CONFINEMENT (PRISON) TO ANOTHER (PAROLE)

THE STANDARD FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT WAS NOT MET FACTS IN DISPUTE MATERIAL FACTS EXISTED MOTIONS WERE STILL PENDING. RESPONDENTS CITE WRONG LEGAL AUTHORITY

JUDGE HAD A DUTY TO RECUSE HIMSELF, TREATED THE CASE CARELESS ABUSED DISCRETION COMMITTED LEGAL ERRORS COMMITTED PLAIN ERROR HAD A PRO SE LITIGANT TO STRINGENT STANDARD.

ISSUE A : PROCEDURAL SUBSTANTIVE DUE PROCESS VIOLATIONS NOT RECEIVING TIMELY NOTIFICATION OF THE WARRANT, WARRANT REQUEST, PAROLE ALLEGATIONS, CHALLENGE TO PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION AND AFFIDAVIT OF WAIVER AND PLEA OF GUILTY AS PUBLISHED BY THE BOARD. DENIED RIGHT TO CHALLENGE PROBABLE CAUSE. NEVER RECEIVED A WRITTEN STATEMENT AS TO EVIDENCE AND REASONS FOR REVOKING PAROLE

THE BOARD OF PAROLES AND PAROLE IN UTAH HAVE VIOLATED THE PETITIONERS PROCEDURAL AND SUBSTANTIVE DUE PROCESS RIGHTS AND DO NOT, DID NOT MEET THE PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS OF MORRISSEY V. BREWER, 408 U.S. 471 (1972)

THE CONSTITUTIONALITY OF PAROLE REVOCATION PROCEDURES IN REGARDS TO THE SYSTEM, VIOLATES THE DUE PROCESS CLAUSE OF THE 14<sup>TH</sup> AMENDMENT AND SO DOES THE UNNECESSARY DELAYS IN THE PAROLE VIOLATION PROCESS ALSO VIOLATES DUE PROCESS PROTECTIONS VAIDIVIA V. DAVIS, 206 F. Supp. 2d 1068 (E.D. Cal 2002)

PURSUANT TO UTAH ADMINISTRATIVE CODE R671-512-1, IT STATES IN RELEVANT PART THAT:

"WHEN THE AGENT EXECUTES THE WARRANT... THE AGENT SHALL PROVIDE THE PAROLEE COPIES OF THE WARRANT AND THE WARRANT REQUEST, AT THE SAME TIME, THE AGENT SHALL ALSO PROVIDE THE PAROLEE WITH THE NOTICE REGARDING PAROLE ALLEGATIONS, THE CHALLENGE TO PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION, AND THE AFFIDAVIT OF WAIVER AND PLEA OF GUILTY AS PUBLISHED BY THE BOARD."



THE LANGUAGE USED ABOVE LEAVES NO ROOM FOR DISCRETION OR PERSONAL INTERPRETATION. PETITIONER WAS DETAINED FROM HIS LIBERTY JUNE 15, 2004 AT SEVIER COUNTY JAIL. AS SHOWN IN 'EXHIBIT A' AT THE BOTTOM THE WARRANT WAS EXECUTED TO THE JAIL JUNE 17, 2004. YET PETITIONER DID NOT RECEIVE HIS COPIES UNTILL JULY 7, 2004. SEE 'EXHIBIT B & C'. IN FACT IT WAS BEYOND 20 DAYS, AFTER THE WARRANT WAS EXECUTED, BEFORE PETITIONER RECEIVED COPIES OF ANYTHING AS DESCRIBED ABOVE IN 2671-512-1. VIOLATION OF SAID RULE AND PROCEDURAL DUE PROCESS VIOLATION.

BY THIS BLATANT ACT AND DISREGARD FOR PETITIONERS RIGHTS HE WAS THEN DENIED THE CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHT TO CHALLENGE THE PROBABLE CAUSE AS ONE OF THE FORMS LISTED IN 2671-~~512-1~~<sup>512-1</sup>. THIS RIGHT IS A DUE PROCESS AND PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENT OF MORRISSEY 1d at 485. AND AN UTAH ADMINISTRATIVE CODE REQUIREMENT 2671-513-1 WHICH STATES IN RELEVANT PART THAT: "WITHIN (7) DAYS OF ARREST AND RETENTION ON THE WARRANT, IF THE PAROLEE WISHES TO CHALLENGE THE PROBABLE CAUSE ..."

AGAIN THE MANDATORY LANGUAGE IS USED HERE. BECAUSE OF THESE DENIALS OF RESPONDENT PETITIONER LOST THIS RIGHT FOR HE NEVER RECEIVED ANY OF THESE FORMS TO CHALLENGE PROBABLE CAUSE OUTLINED IN 2671-512-1 UNTILL BEYOND THE TIME FRAME OUTLINED IN 2671-513-1 20 DAYS ELAPSED BEFORE HE WAS SERVED IN VIOLATION OF SAID RULES AND MORRISSEY. 1d at 485; ALSO SEE VAIDIVIA V. DAVIS 206 F. SUPP. 2d 1068, 1078 (E.D. Cal. 2002)

IN MORRISSEY IT IS CALLED A PRELIMINARY HEARING, UTAH CALLS IT A PROBABLE CAUSE HEARING. MORRISSEY

DEALS WITH THE PLACE AND PROMPTNESS. UTAH SETS THIS TIME BY THE USE OF MANDATORY LANGUAGE IN R671-512-1 AND R671-513-1

QUESTION: ARE THESE PROCEDURAL DUE PROCESS RIGHTS MANDATED BY A GOVERNING LAW? YES!  
WERE THESE RIGHTS AFFORDED/PROVIDED TO PETITIONER? NO!

FROM ARREST TO REVOKING PAROLE THE ENTIRE PROCESS MUST BE COMPLETED WITHIN 2 MONTHS ANYTHING BEYOND THIS IS UNREASONABLE. MORRISSEY 408 U.S. 471

PETITIONER NEVER RECEIVED, AS PART OF PROCEDURAL DUE PROCESS, IN WRITING AS TO THE EVIDENCE IT RELIED ON OR THE REASONS FOR REVOKING PAROLE. MORRISSEY Id at 487-89 ALSO SEE PREECE V. HOUSE 886 P.2D 21 at 511; AND UTAH ADMINISTRATIVE RULE R671-305

AS PART OF PROCEDURAL DUE PROCESS RIGHTS THE FOLLOWING PROCEDURE MUST BE FOLLOWED IN A PAROLE REVOCATION PROCESS, TO CONFORM WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF DUE PROCESS. THAT IS THE PAROLE AUTHORITY MUST COMPOSE A WRITTEN STATEMENT AS TO THE EVIDENCE IT RELIED ON AND THE REASONS FOR REVOKING PAROLE. MORRISSEY Id at 487-89 PREECE Id at 511

BEING ALSO HOW IT IS A RULE, R671-305, THE BOARD OF PAROLES ARE REQUIRED TO COMPLY WITH ITS OWN RULES. THIS ALSO GOES WITH THE RULES LISTED ABOVE R671-512-1 R671-513-1. PREECE Id at 508, 511-12

QUESTION: IS THIS RIGHT PROCEDURAL DUE PROCESS MANDATED BY A GOVERNING LAW? YES!  
WAS THIS RIGHT AFFORDED/PROVIDED TO PETITIONER? NO!

ISSUE B: TIMELY PAROLE REVOCATION HEARING NOT HELD IN  
PRESCRIBED TIME REQUIREMENT OF SET LAW AND  
SET TIME FRAME BY THE USE OF MANDATORY  
LANGUAGE. BOARD OF PAROONS ADMIT IS A CONSTITUTIONAL  
AND STATUTORY RIGHT TO A TIMELY PAROLE REVOCATION  
HEARING AND SET THE TIME WITH MANDATORY  
LANGUAGE AND BECAUSE OF SUCH ITS NO LONGER  
DIRECTORY. ALSO WHEN A HEARING IS SET IT  
CANNOT BE CHANGED WITHOUT IN WRITING AS  
TO WHY AND MUST ESTABLISH JUST CAUSE AND  
GROUNDS.

IT IS A FACT THAT ONE IS ENTITLED TO A TIMELY PAROLE  
REVOCATION HEARING AND UTAH SETS THAT TIME TO BE HELD  
WITHIN 30 DAYS. UTAH ADMINISTRATIVE CODE R671-515-1  
STATES IN RELEVANT PART THAT:

"A PAROLE REVOCATION HEARING  
WILL BE ~~HELD~~ CONDUCTED BY A HEARING OFFICER WITHIN 30 DAYS  
AFTER DETENTION UNLESS THE PAROLEE EXPRESSLY WAIVES THE  
HEARING IN WRITING."

THIS LANGUAGE IS MANDATORY NOT DISCRETIONARY OF "WILL BE  
CONDUCTED BY A HEARING OFFICER WITHIN 30 DAYS."

AS THIS COURT WILL NOTE AT EXHIBIT B THE PETITIONER NEVER  
"WAIVED THIS RIGHT AND IN FACT ON THAT FORM HE  
REQUESTED A HEARING" BY WRITING IT IN. ALSO PETITIONERS  
PAROLE OFFICER STATED THE SAME. SEE EXHIBIT C

PETITIONER WAS DETAINED FROM HIS LIBERTY JUNE 15, 2004  
HIS 1<sup>ST</sup> PAROLE REVOCATION HEARING WAS SET FOR  
AUGUST 25, 2004. SEE EXHIBIT D EVEN THOUGH  
THIS IS A CLEAR CONSTITUTIONAL VIOLATION THEY

MADE THE PROBLEM WORSE. FOR THAT HEARING NEVER TOOK PLACE AND THEY EXTENDED IT TO SEPTEMBER 8, 2005. PETITIONER NEVER RECEIVED ANYTHING IN WRITING AS TO WHY OR ESTABLISHED JUST CAUSE AND GROUNDS.  
SEE EXHIBIT E

NOT ONLY DOES THIS VIOLATE DUE PROCESS AND ADMINISTRATIVE CODE FOR NOT ~~complying~~ complying WITH THE 30 DAY REQUIREMENT BUT ALSO BY EXTENDING A SET DATE WITHOUT JUST CAUSE AND LISTING THOSE REASONS IN WRITING. THIS IS A PROCEDURAL DUE PROCESS VIOLATION.

THIS COURT WILL ALSO NOTE THAT IT TOOK OVER 90 DAYS TO REVOKE PETITIONERS PAROLE SEE EXHIBIT F IN MORRISSEY AND VALDIVIA MAKES IT CLEAR THAT DELAYS IN THE PAROLE REVOCATION PROCESS IS A DUE PROCESS VIOLATION. AND THAT THE ENTIRE PROCESS FROM DETENTION TO THE REVOKING OF PAROLE SHOULD TAKE NO LONGER THAN 60 DAYS NOT TO MENTION THAT THEIR OWN RULE SAYS 30 DAYS R671-S15-1

WHAT'S IRONIC IS THE BOARD OF PAROLES AND FORMS THAT THEY HAVE PAROLEES SIGN TO WAIVE THEIR RIGHTS THEY ADMIT THAT IT IS A "CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY RIGHT" TO A REVOCATION HEARING (EXHIBIT B) AND THAT ITS A "CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHT TO A TIMELY PAROLE REVOCATION HEARING" AND THAT UNDER BOARD RULES THAT RIGHT IS TO HAVE IT HELD WITHIN 30 DAYS AND THEN THEY QUOTE R671-S15-1 ON THEIR FORM SEE EXHIBIT G

THEY SET THIS TIME FRAME WITH MANDATORY LANGUAGE

AND BECAUSE OF SUCH THEY ARE BOUND TO COMPLY

THE BOARD OF PAROLES ARE NOT ACCORDED GREAT DIFFERENCE IN REGARDS TO VIOLATING AND CONFORMING TO CONSTITUTIONAL LAW. SETTING OF A PAROLE REUCATION HEARING IS NOT DIRECTLY CONTRARY TO MALEK V. SAWAYA 230 P2d 629, 636 (UTAH 1986) WHEN THE USE OF MANDATORY LANGUAGE IS USED IN THEIR OWN RULES. BECAUSE IT THEN CONTRADICTS THE REASONING LAYED OUT IN PRECED OF THE BOARD OF PAROLES IS REQUIRED BY LAW TO COMPLY WITH ITS OWN RULES Id at 508, 511-12 IT ALSO CONTRADICTS THE U.S. SUPREME COURTS REASONING THAT THE USE OF MANDATORY LANGUAGE RESTRICTS AND BINDS ONE TO COMPLY. GREENHITZ V. INMATES OF NEBRASKA PENAL AND CORRECTIONAL COMPLEX 442 U.S. 1, 12 (1972); BOARD OF PAROLES V. ALLEN, 482 U.S. 369 (1987); KENTUCKY DEPT OF CORRECTIONS V. THOMPSON 490 U.S. 454 (1989); OLIM V. WAKINEKONA, 461 U.S. 2+250; MEACHTUM V. FANO 427 U.S. 2+226-27; CONNECTICUT Bd of PAROLES V. DUMSCHAT 452 U.S. 458 (1981); HEWITT V. HELMS 459 U.S. 460 (1983)

REGARDLES THE FACT REMAINS IT WAS SET AT ONE POINT THEN IT WAS CHANGED WITHOUT IN WRITING AS TO JUST CAUSE OR GROUNDS WHY IT WAS CHANGED AND NOT ONLY WAS THE FIRST SETTING OF AUGUST 25, 2004 REUCATION HEARING SET BEYOND THEIR OWN RULE OF WITHIN 30 DAYS BUT THEY THEN CHANGE IT AGAIN

PRISONER IS ENTITLED TO PROCEDURAL DUE PROCESS

PROTECTIONS AT EVERY STEP BEFORE HIS LIBERTY  
CAN BE TAKEN. AND THAT "LIBERTY IS VALUABLE  
AND MUST BE SEEN AS WITHIN THE PROTECTION  
OF THE 14<sup>TH</sup> AMENDMENT" MORRISSEY 408 U.S. at 482

IN FOOTE V. UTAH Bd. of PAROLES 808 P.2d at 745  
MAKES IT CLEAR THAT "IT IS THE PRIVILEGE OF  
THE JUDICIARY TO ASSURE THAT A CLAIM OF THE DENIAL  
OF DUE PROCESS BY AN ARM OF GOVERNMENT BE HEARD  
AND IF JUSTIFIED THAT IT BE VINDICATED. (WHAT MAY  
CONSTITUTE DUE PROCESS IN ANY GIVEN CIRCUMSTANCE  
MAY VARY, BUT ASSUREDLY THE PAROLE BOARD IS NOT  
OUTSIDE THE CONSTITUTIONAL MANDATE THAT THE ACTIONS  
OF GOVERNMENT MUST AFFORD DUE PROCESS OF LAW). THUS,  
THERE IS NO QUESTION THAT HABEAS CORPUS REVIEW  
OF THE BOARD OF PAROLS ACTIONS IS AVAILABLE."

ISSUE C'. THE USE OF MANDATORY LANGUAGE IN STATUTES, RULES, REGULATIONS OR ADMINISTRATIVE CODES SET LIMITATIONS ON THE BOARD OF PAROONS DISCRETION AND BINDS THEM TO COMPLY, WHICH CALLS FOR PROCEDURAL DUE PROCESS PROTECTIONS. THE BOARD OF PAROONS MUST COMPLY WITH ITS OWN RULES AND NOT UP TO THEM OF THEIR DISCRETION TO COMPLY OR NOT

THE UTAH BOARD OF PAROONS USES DEFINED, MANDATORY LANGUAGE IN THEIR RULES THAT GOVERN THEM. IN MORRISSEY 408 U.S. 24 488 MAKES IT CLEAR THAT EACH STATE MUST WRITE A CODE OF PROCEDURE FOR REVOKING PAROLE. UTAH DID IN THE FORM OF UTAH ADMINISTRATIVE CODE AND STATUTE. HOWEVER THEY ARE IN NON-COMPLIANCE OF THEIR OWN RULES.

THEY REFUSE TO COMPLY WITH THEIR DUTY THEY REFUSE TO PERFORM AN ACT REQUIRED BY CONSTITUTION LAW, THEIR OWN RULES AND STATUTORY LAW. IT NEEDS TO BE UNDERSTOOD THAT THE BOARD OF PAROONS USE MANDATORY LANGUAGE IN THEIR RULES.

AS LISTED ABOVE IN "ISSUE A" IS QUOTED UTAH ADMINISTRATIVE CODE R671-512-1 AND R671-513-1 IN "ISSUE B" IS QUOTED R671-515-1 AND IN EACH INSTANCE THE WORDING USED IS "WILL" "SHALL" "WITHIN" LANGUAGE USED THEREIN REQUIRE PROTECTIONS AND ITS FUNDAMENTALLY UNFAIR WHEN NOT FOLLOWING DEFINED LANGUAGE.

THE LANGUAGE USED LIMITS THE ACTIONS OF THE BOARD OF PAROONS BY GOVERNING LAW. THE BOARD OF PAROONS PROCESSES AND ACTIONS DENIED THE PETITIONER PROCEDURAL DUE PROCESS RIGHTS OF CONSTITUTIONALLY PROTECTED LIBERTY. THE USE OF DEFINED LANGUAGE IS A PROTECTABLE INTEREST. PROCEDURAL DUE PROCESS STANDARDS MUST BE MET AND THE PROCESSES AND ACTIONS USED BY THE BOARD OF PAROONS FALL SHORT OF CONSTITUTIONAL GUARANTEES.

IN GREENHITZ V. INMATES OF NEBRASKA PENAL AND CORRECTIONAL COMPLEX, 442 U.S. 1, 12 (1972) DEALS WITH DEFINED LANGUAGE USED BY A BOARD OF PAROONS AND FOUND:

THE DUE PROCESS CLAUSE APPLIES WHEN GOVERNMENT ACTION DEPRIVES A PERSON OF LIBERTY OR PROPERTY Id at 7

LANGUAGE CREATES A LEGITIMATE EXPECTATION INVOKING DUE PROCESS PROTECTIONS Id at 9

LANGUAGE CREATES A PROTECTABLE EXPECTATION Id at 11

LANGUAGE CREATED A PRESUMPTION GAVE RISE TO LEGITIMATE EXPECTATION AND CONSTITUTIONAL PROTECTION Id at 11-12

DUE PROCESS PROTECTS INMATES FROM THE ARBITRARY LOSS OF A STATUTORY RIGHT Id at 12

NOW UTAH ADMINISTRATIVE CODE IS GOVERNED BY UTAH TITLE 63 CHAPTER 46(2) ADMINISTRATIVE RULE MAKING ACT. BECAUSE OF SUCH UNION IT THAT CLASSIFY AS A STATUTE PER SE CREATING AN UMBRELLA EFFECT? "DUE PROCESS IS FLEXIBLE AND CALLS FOR SUCH PROCEDURAL PROTECTIONS



AS THE PARTICULAR SITUATION DEMANDS" GREENHITZ  
1d 2f 12; ALSO SEE MORRISSEY 408 U.S. 1d 2f 481;  
AND LABRUM V. UT. ST. Bd. of PARONS 870 P2d 2f 903 & 911.

BECAUSE OF SUCH USE OF MANDATORY LANGUAGE IN  
THE BOARD OF PARONS RULES UNDER UTAH ADMINISTRATIVE  
CODE PROTECTIONS OF DUE PROCESS AND RIGHTS ARE ENTITLED.

"THE FUNCTION OF LEGAL PROCESS, AS THAT CONCEPT IS EMBODIED  
IN THE CONSTITUTION, AND IN THE REALM OF FACTFINDING, IS TO  
MINIMIZE THE RISK OF ERRONEOUS DECISIONS. BECAUSE OF THE  
BROAD SPECTRUM OF CONCERNS TO WHICH THE TERM ~~DO~~ MUST  
APPLY, FLEXIBILITY IS NECESSARY TO GEAR THE PROCESS TO  
THE PARTICULAR NEED; THE QUANTUM AND QUALITY OF THE  
PROCESS DUE IN A PARTICULAR ~~REASO~~ SITUATION DEPEND  
UPON THE NEED TO SERVE THE PURPOSE OF MINIMIZING  
THE RISK OF ERROR." GREENHITZ 1d 2f 13

PETITIONER MUST BE AFFORDED THESE PROTECTIONS AND  
HAS A PARTICULAR NEED THAT THE USE OF MANDATORY  
DEFINED LANGUAGE USED IN THE BOARD OF PARONS  
RULES UNDER THE UTAH ADMINISTRATIVE CODE  
IN REVOCATION PROCEDURES BE BOUND TO COMPLY  
WITH THEIR OWN RULES TO MINIMIZE THE RISK  
OF ERRORS ON THEIR PART IN VIOLATING, INFRINGING  
UPON PETITIONERS RIGHTS. THIS LANGUAGE BINDS  
THE BOARD GREENHITZ 1d 2f 11

THE ISSUE OF DEFINED MANDATORY LANGUAGE IS ALSO  
RAISED IN BOARD OF PARONS V. ALLEN 482 U.S. 369  
(1987) IN THAT THE USE OF MANDATORY LANGUAGE,  
FUNDAMENTAL FAIRNESS, CREATION OF LANGUAGE PUTS

RESTRICTIONS ON DISCRETION "CLEARLY CREATES A LIBERTY INTEREST THAT IS PROTECTED BY THE DUE PROCESS CLAUSE OF THE 14<sup>TH</sup> AMENDMENT... USES MANDATORY LANGUAGE ("SHALL") TO CREATE A PRESUMPTION" 101 at 369

THE BOARD OF PAROONS USES MANDATORY LANGUAGE OF "SHALL" "WILL" "WITHIN" THROUGHOUT ITS ADMINISTRATIVE RULES SETTING TIME LIMITS ETC. THE BOARD DID NOT COMPLY WITH ITS OWN DEFINED RULES THAT LIMITS THEIR DISCRETION

"STATE STATUTE MAY CREATE LIBERTY INTEREST THAT ARE ENTITLED TO PROTECTION UNDER THE DUE PROCESS CLAUSE. THE COURT CONCLUDED THAT THE MANDATORY LANGUAGE AND THE STRUCTURE ... CREATED AN EXPECTANCY ... WHICH IS A LIBERTY INTEREST ENTITLED TO SUCH PROTECTION." 101 at 371

"IN DECIDING THAT THIS STATE CREATED A CONSTITUTIONALLY PROTECTED LIBERTY INTEREST, THE COURT FOUND SIGNIFICANT ITS MANDATORY LANGUAGE - THE USE OF THE WORD "SHALL"... 101 at 374

THE USE OF MANDATORY LANGUAGE "SHALL" CREATES A PRESUMPTION 101 at 376

IT NEEDS TO BE UNDERSTAND THAT THESE REASONINGS NOT ONLY APPLY TO A STATUTE BUT ALSO APPLIES TO A RULE, REGULATION OR ADMINISTRATIVE CODES CREATES A LIBERTY OR PROPERTY INTEREST (OR "ENTITLEMENT") IF IT LIMITS THE DISCRETION OF OFFICIALS. KENTUCKY DEPT. OF CORRECTIONS V. THOMPSON, 490 U.S. 454 (1989); OLIM V. WAKINEKONA, 461 U.S. at 250; MEACHUM V. FANO, 427 U.S. at 226-27; CONNECTICUT Bd. of PAROONS V. DUMSCHAT, 452 U.S. 458 (1981).

THE MOST COMMON WAY OF LIMITING DISCRETION IS TO USE "EXPLICITLY MANDATORY LANGUAGE IN CONNECTION WITH REQUIRING SUBSTANTIVE PREDICATES." HEWITT V. HELMS, 459 U.S. 460 (1983); ACCORD KENTUCKY DEPT OF CORRECTIONS V. THOMPSON, 490 U.S. at 462; BOARD OF PARDONS V. ALLEN, 482 U.S. 369 (1987)

"MANDATORY LANGUAGE" MEANS WORDS LIKE "SHALL" "WILL" OR "MUST" HEWITT V. HELMS at 471; BOARD OF PARDONS V. ALLEN at 378

"SUBSTANTIVE PREDICATES" ARE "SUBSTANTIVE LIMITATIONS ON OFFICIAL DISCRETION" OLIM V. WALKINEKONA, 461 U.S. 238 (1983)

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