2005

Michael A. Bacon v. Jerry Jorgensen, Warden, Utah Board of Pardons and Parole, et. al : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Michael Bacon pled guilty to all six allegations of parole violation. His guilty plea was a waiver of all nonjurisdictional issues, including claims of pre-plea violations of due process.

The petitioner claims that the board's actions were untimely. But he does not show how an earlier hearing would have resulted in a different outcome. His parole would have been revoked, based on his guilty pleas, regardless of when the hearing was held.

The district court correctly denied the petitioner's motion to recuse. Bacon's motion was inadequate and it failed to present facts that would support a claim of bias.

ARGUMENT

I. PETITIONER'S GUILTY PLEAS CONSTITUTED A WAIVER OF ALL NONJURISDICTIONAL ISSUES, INCLUDING ALLEGED PRE-PLEA CONSTITUTIONAL VIOLATIONS

Petitioner's guilty pleas to the allegations of parole violation constituted a waiver of all nonjurisdictional issues, including alleged pre-plea constitutional violations. The general rule is well established: "[A] voluntary guilty plea is a waiver of the right to appeal all nonjurisdictional issues, including alleged pre-plea constitutional violations."

State v. Sery, 758 P.2d 935, 938 (Utah Ct. App. 1998); see also Bentley v. West Valley City, 2001 UT 23 ¶4, 21 P.3d 210, 211 (Utah 2001) (guilty plea waived all nonjurisdictional defects, “including any alleged pre-plea constitutional violations”); State v. Munson, 972 P.2d 418, 421 (Utah 1998) (“Thus, a knowing and voluntary guilty plea precludes reservation of issues for appeal, even those concerning alleged pre-plea constitutional violations.”); State v. Smith, 833 P.2d 371, 372 (Utah Ct. App. 1992) (“A voluntary plea of guilty or no contest constitutes a waiver of the right to appeal all nonjurisdictional issues”). “[B]y pleading guilty, the defendant is deemed to have admitted all of the essential elements of the crime charged and thereby waives all nonjurisdictional defects.” State v. Parsons, 781 P.2d 1275, 1278 (Utah 1989).

Petitioner pled guilty to the parole violations. R. 123. No jurisdictional defects have been alleged by Bacon in his petition. When petitioner pled guilty, he waived his right to challenge any nonjurisdictional defects there might have been in the procedure used by the board. The district court correctly found that the issues raised in the petition had been waived. R. 183-84. The dismissal of the petition should be affirmed on this basis.

II. THE TIMING AND RESCHEDULING OF PETITIONER’S PAROLE REVOCATION HEARING DID NOT VIOLATE HIS RIGHT TO PROCEDURAL DUE PROCESS

Even if petitioner had not waived the claims made in his petition by pleading guilty to the parole violation allegations: not providing him with copies of the warrant and

warrant request earlier, not holding his parole violation hearing earlier, and rescheduling his parole revocation hearing for different times on the same day did not operate to deny petitioner procedural due process. The Utah Supreme Court has found that when a parolee's rights have been violated, the remedy is not to vacate the order, rather the remedy is to ensure the parolee's rights were met. Monson v. Carver, 928 P.2d 1017, 1028 (Utah 1996). To prevail on a due process claim, petitioner must "demonstrate how a particular procedural requirement [would] substantially further the Board's fact-finding process" Id. at 1030. "[I]f an inmate fails to demonstrate how a particular procedural requirement will substantially further the Board's fact-finding process, we have no basis for concluding that a failure to provide that procedure operated to deny the inmate due process." Id. (failure to permit counsel to participate in hearing not a due process violation because inmate made no showing how such participation would have substantially assisted the fact-finding process).

Petitioner fails to show how receiving a copy of the arrest warrant and warrant request, receiving a parole revocation hearing within thirty days, and receiving reasons for changing the time of day his hearing was held would substantially further the Board's fact-finding process. Rather than meet his burden, the petitioner argues for an absolute rule that would require the reversal of the board's decision for any perceived error without any consideration of the test set out in Monson.

Nor has petitioner shown that his revocation hearing was not held within a reasonable time. Instead, Bacon claims that any violation of the thirty-day time period (or the seven-day period for serving the warrant) carries a mandatory finding of prejudice. The Utah Supreme Court rejected this argument in Malek v. Sawaya, 730 P.2d 629, 630 (Utah 1986). In Malek, the inmate complained that “the Board failed to conduct a timely parole revocation hearing.” Id. The Supreme Court rejected this claim, and held that the inmate had not shown that failing to conduct a timely parole revocation hearing was a substantial and prejudicial denial of constitutional rights. “The very nature of the proceedings before the Board of Pardons prompts the conclusion that the time limitation for determining when a hearing date will be set is directory only and that noncompliance is not unreasonable per se.” Id. The court also “reiterated that a writ of habeas corpus is not an available remedy in the absence of a claim of fundamental unfairness at trial or a substantial and prejudicial denial of constitutional rights.” Id. (citing Morshita v. Morris, 730 P.2d 691, 693 (Utah 1980) (“[a]n entry of formal findings of fact and conclusions of law would add nothing in the instant case”)).

Petitioner’s parole would have been revoked regardless of whether the hearing was held within thirty days. He pled guilty to violating his parole. R. 123. The district court correctly determined that the outcome of Bacon’s parole violation proceeding would not have been changed by a change in the timing of the hearing.

III. BACON FAILED TO MEET HIS BURDEN OF SHOWING BIAS ON THE PART OF JUDGE HANSON

Upon receipt of the petitioner's motion to recuse, Judge Hanson referred the matter to the presiding judge for his review. R. 220. He only continued with this matter after the recusal motion had been denied by Judge Barrett. R. 226. Having complied fully with the requirements of Rule 63(b), Utah R. Civ. P., "the burden shifted to the petitioners to show actual bias or abuse of discretion." State v. Alonzo, 973 P.2d 975, 979 (Utah 1998).

We agree with the court of appeals that actual bias or abuse of discretion has not been demonstrated here. The parties differ widely in their account and general explanation of the trial judge's in-chambers comments. Absent a record of the actual language used by the judge and absent any other evidence of actual bias in the record, we agree with the court of appeals and conclude that the affidavits of one side are not enough to prove actual bias.

In State v. Gardner, we held that a trial judge's failure to recuse based on the appearance of bias may be grounds for reversal if actual prejudice is shown. Actual prejudice can be shown when there exists a reasonable likelihood that the result would have been more favorable for the defendants absent the trial judge's appearance of bias. Again, the comments alleged here created an appearance of bias; however, standing alone, we conclude that they were insufficient to support a finding that actual prejudice was suffered by petitioners. We therefore affirm the court of appeals in finding that had the judge recused himself, there was nevertheless no reasonable likelihood of a more favorable result for defendants.

Id. (citations and internal quotations omitted).

Bacon has failed to allege sufficient facts to show actual bias. As shown above, the district court's decision was correct and should be affirmed. Absent a showing that a more favorable result would have been reached if Judge Hanson had recused himself the

petitioner is unable to show actual prejudice. Judge Barrett correctly held that Bacon had failed to comply with Rule 63 and his decision to deny the motion to recuse should be affirmed on appeal.

CONCLUSION

For the above stated reasons, respondents ask this Court to affirm the dismissal of this action.

RESPONDENTS DO NOT DESIRE ORAL ARGUMENT OR A PUBLISHED OPINION

Respondents-appellees do not request oral argument and a published opinion in this matter. The questions raised in this appeal, having already been decided by this Court and the Utah Supreme Court in published opinions, are not such that oral argument or a published opinion are necessary, though respondents desire to participate in oral argument if such is held by the Court.